
 

 

 
Portfolio Holder Decisions/Leader 

Decisions 

 
Date:  Wednesday 2 June 2021 
Time:  12.00 pm 
   

 
Membership 
 
Portfolio Holder for Planning and Transport 
 
Items on the agenda: -  
 

1.   Welsh Road East, Southam - 40mph speed limit buffer 
zone 
 

3 - 14 

 
 
 

Monica Fogarty 
Chief Executive 

Warwickshire County Council 
Shire Hall, Warwick 

 



Portfolio Holder 
Decisions/Leader Decisions 
Wednesday 2 June 2021 

Page 2 
  

 

 

Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 
 
Members are required to register their disclosable pecuniary interests within 28 days of 
their election of appointment to the Council. Any changes to matters registered or new 
matters that require to be registered must be notified to the Monitoring Officer as soon as 
practicable after they arise. 
 
A member attending a meeting where a matter arises in which they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest must (unless they have a dispensation): 
 

•  Declare the interest if they have not already registered it 
 

•  Not participate in any discussion or vote 
 

•  Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with 
 

•  Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 
28 days of the meeting 

 
Non-pecuniary interests relevant to the agenda should be declared at the commencement 
of the meeting. 
 
The public reports referred to are available on the Warwickshire Web 
https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1 
 

Public Speaking 
 
Any member of the public who is resident or working in Warwickshire, or who is in receipt of 
services from the Council, may speak at the meeting for up to three minutes on any matter 
within the remit of the Committee. This can be in the form of a statement or a question. If 
you wish to speak please notify Democratic Services in writing at least two working days 
before the meeting. You should give your name and address and the subject upon which 
you wish to speak. Full details of the public speaking scheme are set out in the Council’s 
Standing Orders.  
 

https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

Decision Record – Objections to proposed 
speed limit change on Welsh Road East 

Southam 
 
Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for Transport and 

Planning 

Date of decision 2 June 2021 

 

Signed 
 
 

 
Decision taken 
 
That the Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning approves (1) the implementation of a 40mph 
speed limit as advertised in accordance with the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. The site is 
located on Welsh Road East Southam. 

 

 

Reasons for decisions 

Where objections have been received to advertised traffic orders it is necessary for the Portfolio 
Holder to decide on the orders. 

Background Information 

The scheme comprises a reduction in the speed limit on Welsh Road East from national speed 
limit (60 mph) to 40 mph for a distance of 600m in a south easterly direction as shown in 
Appendix 1. 

 

The proposed traffic orders were advertised on 19 November 2020. Warwickshire Police have 
objected to the proposed speed limit order and have made comments in relation to this. 

 

County Councillor Andy Crump has supported the proposed speed limit order due to the new 
development to the east of Southam beyond Spitfire Lane. 

 

Warwickshire Police objection to speed limit change  

Warwickshire Police support the principle that when drivers comply with a reduced speed limit 
there are tangible benefits including, reducing the frequency and severity of injury road collisions 
and improving people’s sense of wellbeing in their local communities as well as when using the 
roads, it should be re-iterated that limits should largely rely on their self-regulating qualities. 

The proposal is not accompanied with any speed survey data which makes it very difficult to 
assess this proposed limit, I am of course aware of the affects that Covidd-19 restrictions are 
having and the difficulties in obtaining representative data. Having visited the location I can 
understand that it would be beneficial, in light of the new development, to reduce the actual speed 
of vehicles along that road. However, I’m not sure the signage alone would have the desired 
effect. The road in nature is wide, fairly straight, fast, rural stretch of carriageway which lends 
itself to overtaking opportunities prior to entering the built-up area, or on leaving it in the opposite 
direction. I cannot see that, without further engineering measures, there will be any tangible Page 3

Page 1 of 3 Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

 
 

Report Author Chris Round 
chrisround@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Assistant Director Scott Tompkins 

Lead Director Strategic Director for Communities 

Lead Member Portfolio Holder for Transport & Planning 

 

Urgent matter? No 

Confidential or exempt? No  

Is the decision contrary to the budget and 
policy framework? 

No 

 

 

 

degree of compliance to a new 40mph speed limit and I fear that this will be placing an 
unacceptable expectation of enforcement on Warwickshire Police. 

Warwickshire Police would request that additional Engineering features be considered at this 
proposed terminal point, that seek to reinforce to drivers the change of environment, 
supplementary gateway features as well as the markings and roundels on the road surface for 
example, therefore promoting self-regulating compliance. 

Warwickshire Police, whilst adopting a position of non-objection, are keen to work with the 
highway authority to consider additional Engineering features that seek to reinforce to drivers the 
change of environment. This will both help to prevent the creation of an unrealistic expectation of 
compliance, where at present none exists and support the speed reductions required. 

 

Response: Dragons teeth markings, 40 mph roundels and the use of repeater signs along the 
600m stretch of road have also been added to the scheme design with a gateway feature added 
at the start of the proposed 40mph speed limit (see Appendix 2). Due to the road not being street 
lit we could not add further speed reducing features to make this scheme self-enforcing but 
looking at future funding possibilities to make this possible. 

Financial Implications 

Under the local Councillors Delegated Budget Capital spending finances the cost of the works will 
be fully funded. 

Environmental Implications 

The environmental impacts of delegated Budget highway schemes are considered as part of the 
process. 

The contractors on the Council’s Framework Contract for the Provision of Engineering and 
Construction Works (WCC 6012) have all demonstrated that they hold a certificate of compliance 
with BS EN ISO 140001 (or equivalent) or have otherwise satisfactorily demonstrated their 
policies and arrangements for the management of construction-related environmental issues. 

Lists of reports considered 

Not Applicable 

List of background papers 

Police objection in the form of letter & email. 

Members and officers consulted and informed 

Portfolio Holder – Councillor Clarke  

Page 4

Page 2 of 3



 

 

 
 
 

Corporate Board – NA 

Legal – Ian Marriot 

Finance – Andrew Felton 

Equality –  

Democratic Services – Isabelle Moorhouse/Helen Barnsley 

Councillors – Local Member(s): Cllr Crump (Southam South) 

Page 5

Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank



H

O

D

N

E

L

L

 

D

R

I

V

E

W

E

L

S

H

 

R

O

A

D

 

E

A

S

T

W

E

L

S

H

 

R

O

A

D

 

E

A

S

T

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Welsh Rd East Highlands Farm,

Southam.

SPEED LIMIT CONSULTATION

WARWICKSHIRE

CR GS

September 2020

NTS @ A3

TR11246-02

DELEGATED BUDGETS

H:\Traffic\AA_PROJECT SUPPORT\Southam\Grahams Delegated Budgets\Welsh Road\Drawings\TR11246 - Welsh Rd East at Highlands Farm - 40mph Buffer Zone.dwg

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities,

Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

Key :-

- Existing 30mph Speed Limit (Welsh Rd East).

- Proposed 40mph Speed Limit (600m in length).

P
age 7

P
age 1 of 1

P
age 1 of 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
ASCOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
STONETON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
ASCOTE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
HODNELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
WATERGALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
RADBOURNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
PRIORS

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
91.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
The Bailiff's House

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
Home Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
WELSH ROAD EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
Greystones

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
Airfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
90.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
92.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
91.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
Marstonside

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
Insight

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
7 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
15 to 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
Lion House

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
CROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
MARSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
90.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
Holt Farm

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


T
his page is intentionally left blank



PS01

Proposed Diag.No 670 on

a yellow backing board and

new post mounted @ 2100mm.

PS01

Proposed Diag.No 670 on

a yellow backing board and

new post mounted @ 2100mm.

PS02

Proposed Diag.No 670 on

a yellow backing board and

new post mounted @ 2100mm.

PS02

Proposed Diag.No 670 on

a yellow backing board and

new post mounted @ 2100mm.

Existing 30mph roundel and

dragons teeth road markings

to be remarked as shown.

Proposed Diag.No 1065 40

Roundel added coming east

along Welsh Rd East

(7500mm) at terminal signs.

Existing signs and post to be

removed as shown. PS01 & PS02

to be positioned in same location.

Existing signs and post to be

removed as shown. PS01 & PS02

to be positioned in same location.
W

E

L

S

H

 

R

O

A

D

 

E

A

S

T

PS04

Proposed Diag.No 670 x 2

(300mm) on a new post

mounted @ 1500mm.

Proposed Diag.No 1065

40 Roundel markings x 2

(4300mm).

W

E

L

S

H

 

R

O

A

D

 

E

A

S

T

PS03

Proposed Diag.No 671 on

a yellow backing board and

new post mounted @ 2100mm.

Proposed Diag.No 1065 '40'

added coming along Welsh Rd

East (7500mm) at new terminal

signs. Dragons teeth added on

approach also.

W

E

L

S

H

 

R

O

A

D

 

E

A

S

T

W

E

L

S

H

 

R

O

A

D

 

E

A

S

T

Proposed Diag.No 1065

40 Roundel markings x 2

(4300mm).

PS04

Proposed Diag.No 670 x 2

(300mm) on a new post

mounted @ 1500mm.

PS02

Proposed Diag.No 670 on

a yellow backing board and

new post mounted @ 2100mm.

PS02

Proposed Diag.No 670 on

a yellow backing board and

new post mounted @ 2100mm.

PS03

Proposed Diag.No 671 on

a yellow backing board and

new post mounted @ 2100mm.

KEY :-

- Proposed signs and posts.

- Existing sign & post to be removed.

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Welsh Rd East Highlands Farm,

Southam.

GA Plan Sheet 1 of 2

WARWICKSHIRE

CR GS

September 2020

1:1000 @ A3

TR11246-03

DELEGATED BUDGETS

H:\Traffic\AA_PROJECT SUPPORT\Southam\Grahams Delegated Budgets\Welsh Road\Drawings\TR11246 - Welsh Rd East at Highlands Farm - 40mph Buffer Zone.dwg

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities,

Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

P
age 9

P
age 1 of 1

P
age 1 of 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
The Bailiff's House

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
WELSH ROAD EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
90.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
92.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
Marstonside

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
91.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
89.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
90.8m

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 11

Page 1 of 3Page 1 of 3



Page 12

Page 2 of 3



using the roads. It should be re-iterated that limits should largely rely on their self-regulating 

qualities. 

The proposal is not accompanied with any speed survey data which makes it very difficult 

to assess this proposed limit, I am of course aware of the effects that Covid-19 restrictions are 

having and the difficulties in obtaining representative data. Having visited the location I can 

understand that it would be beneficial, in light of the new development, to reduce the actual speed 

of vehicles along that section of road. However, I am not sure that signage alone will have the 

desired effect. The road in nature is a wide, fairly straight, fast, rural section of carriageway which 

lends itself to overtaking opportunities prior to entering the built up area, or on leaving it in the 

opposite direction. I cannot see that, without further engineering measures, there will be any 

tangible degree of compliance to a new 40mph limit and I fear that this will be placing an 

unacceptable expectation of enforcement on Warwickshire Police. 

Warwickshire Police would request that additional engineering features be considered at 

this proposed terminal point, that seek to reinforce to drivers the change of environment, 

supplementary gateway features as well as the markings and roundels on the road surface for 

example, therefore promoting self-regulating compliance. 

Warwickshire Police, whilst adopting a position of non-objection, are keen to work with the 

Highway Authority to consider additional engineering features that seek to reinforce to drivers the 

change of environment. This will both help to prevent the creation of an unrealistic expectation of 

compliance, where at present none exists and support the speed reductions required. 

Yours Sincerely. 

Sally Rolfe BA 

Traffic Management Advisor 

Warwickshire Police 

� 07817 158136 

IElTMA@warwickshire.pnn.police.uk 

Page 13

Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Welsh Road East, Southam - 40mph speed limit buffer zone
	Appendix 1 - Welsh Road East, Southam - 40mph speed limit buffer zone - Consultation Plan
	Sheets and Views
	TR11246-02 Speed Limit consultation Plan


	Appendix 2 - Welsh Road East, Southam - General Arrangement Plan Sheet 1 of 2
	Sheets and Views
	TR11246-03 General Arrangement Plan Sheet 1 of 2


	Police Letter response - Welsh Road East, Southam - 40mph speed limit buffer zone




